CITY OF TUCUMCARI
MINUTES
September 10, 2009

The Tucumcari City Commission met for their reguiaeeting on Thursday, September
10, 2009, at 6:00 p.m. in the City Commission Charab Members present constituting
a quorum were Jim Lafferty, Robert Lumpkin, Jim8gndoval, and Jim Witcher.

City staff members present were Bobbye Rose, Cigndder; Mike Cherry, Assistant
City Manager; Christine Dougherty, City Clerk; DoBgwers, Community Development
Director; Roger Hatcher, Chief of Police; and CIRey, Director of Human Resources.

Mr. Ray Aragon, Deacon of St. Anne’s Catholic Clurgave the invocation and
Commissioner Sandoval led the group in the Pleddédlegiance.

Consideration of Changes or Deletions to Agenda

There were no changes or deletions to the agenda.

Iltems from Commissioners

Commissioners Sandoval and Lafferty had no comments

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked all those in attendafoc coming to the meeting and
stated that he looked forward to hearing from athem.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher had no comments.

Approval of Minutes

Commissioner Lafferty moved that the minutes bdethluntil staff could review the
recording of the meeting and ensure that the ménwere accurate. Commissioner
Sandoval seconded the motion. Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Lumpkin Witcher
No Yes Yes Yes

Approval of Vouchers

A motion was made by Commissioner Lumpkin and séedrby Commissioner Lafferty
to approve the City vouchers. Roll Call:

Lafferty Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval
Yes Yes Yes Yes

Items from Citizens

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked if any citizens wiskedddress the Commission.



Mr. Chuck Templeton approached the Commission &ateéd that he has spoken to them
three or four times. Mr. Templeton stated thatMoaild like to get a license to clean up
Tucumcari. He stated that he is not seeking aracttr’s license. He said he wishes to
use local contractors to clean up Tucumcari in otdéncrease business in the City. Mr.
Templeton stated that he has been working on tideavor for five months and has not
satisfactorily had his questions answered.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked Mr. Templeton if he dolike to meet with the
Commission or with a few of the Commissioners tecdss his issues. Mr. Templeton
stated that he would love to meet with the Comraissi Mr. Templeton said that his
questions have not been answered and ensuredethaad not asking for money. Mr.
Templeton stated that he wants to help clean upifaari.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher suggested that the CommisBama work session on Monday,
September 14 and he would be glad to meet withTldmpleton before that work session
at 4:30 pm.

Commissioner Lumpkin stated that he has spoken MithTempleton on two or three
occasions and said that he thought he could clawtyat his intentions are.
Commissioner Lumpkin stated that Mr. Templetoneisksng a large building in the City
to divide into smaller sections to house an offdrghop, a Formica countertop business,
a deli, and a consignment shop. Mr. Templetoredt#itat the consignment shop would
be helpful in a town of retirees.

Commissioner Lumpkin asked what Mr. Templeton wadddif a building large enough
could not be located. Mr. Templeton stated thatwas willing to utilize several
buildings if a large one could not be located. Wempleton stated that he inquired at the
Economic Development Office regarding a large bogdand he was told that the
building he inquired about was being held for caxgé business. Mr. Templeton stated
that the population will not increase if the Cisyniot cleaned up.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that he works hardntet the needs of the citizens. He
also explained that he is on the EDC Board andqggaated in the phone conference with
Mr. Templeton. Commissioner Lafferty said that Miempleton did not make any
specific requests of the EDC. Commissioner Laffagked that Mr. Templeton make a
list of his specific needs and the Commission wad#lsure that his needs are addressed.
Commissioner Lafferty said the Commission would ddad to help him if he will
produce a list of requests.

Commissioner Lumpkin stated that he has alwaysdhe@ise for the City Manager and
the EDC Director. Mr. Lumpkin stated that the Cossion will work with Mr.
Templeton.

Mr. Templeton asked to be put on the next Commisagenda as he says he can get lots
of people to come to Tucumcari and do lots of good.



Mayor Pro Tem Witcher clarified that a meeting orordday would no longer be
necessary as Mr. Templeton was going to supplyGite Manager with a list of his
requests. Mr. Templeton agreed that no meetinglamday would be necessary.

Proclamations, Memorials, Or Petitions

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher called Ms. Gigi Parker of tBaughters of the American
Revolution to the podium. Mr. Witcher read the d?amation declaring September 17-
23, 2009 as Constitution Week.

City Manager’s Report

City Manager, Ms. Bobbye Rose, called upon Chietichier to give the monthly Police
Department Report. Chief Hatcher stated that dua tomputer upgrade that changed
report settings, the Police Department has expegtbra glitch with their computer
system and were unable to provide the Commissidim statistical reports for the month
of August, 2009.

Chief Hatcher was able to report that met with A&remal Control department from
Clovis and reviewed their Animal Control Ordinance.

Ms. Rose also stated that she spoke with Ms. L&stig from the State Animal Control
Office and that Ms. King has agreed to provide bemments on the draft of the
Tucumcari Animal Ordinance.

Ms. Rose stated that Mr. Encinias-Angel, Conven@amter Director attended an out-of-
town funeral for a family member and could not besgnt to annotate his report.
However, Ms. Rose directed the Commission to thel lcapies of the report in their
packets. Commissioner Lumpkin commented that dnedt of the report was pleasing
and that Mr. Encinias-Angel did a good job on theart.

Ms. Rose reported that she has received propostatespto the landfill project from the
engineer. She indicated that the updates are bhioumthrge booklet and she encouraged
anyone interested to stop by her office to reviee tipdates. She explained that the
proposed updates were not going to impact the pend the changes are designed to
save money. Ms. Rose also stated that the samtatew is working to install the fence
between the landfill and property adjacent to edfill that she discussed with them
previously.

Ms. Rose informed the Commission that she has sptk&lr. Olson, a water attorney
out of Roswell who is reviewing the contract betwelee City and Public Improvement
District Two at Ute Lake. Mr. Olson cautioned thatdid not recommend the automatic
renewal of the contract without a negotiation périgpon renewal. Mr. Olson further
explained that within the contract the price peedoot is $125 with a $25 credit. Ms.
Rose checked the minutes of the Commission meetitege this contract was discussed
and the price approved by the Commission was $&2&¢re foot of water. Mr. Olson
also suggested that the language referring to dtervas treated should be removed as it
will be non-potable.



Ms. Rose stated that she has been working with@QdrWiegel on the renewal of the

insurance policy which expires in November. Mss&cuggested that the insurance
should renew in conjunction with the start of edidtal year. The new insurance

expiration will be negotiated so that it comes op rfenewal at the beginning of each

fiscal year.

Ms. Rose stated that she is scheduling a meetitigtihwe water cooperatives to negotiate
their contracts late next week.

Ms. Rose reported that she has been attending ngsetince a week at 7 am with
representatives from the EDC, Chamber, and Coutigiwhave been productive and
increased communication.

Bids and Contracts

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher called on Mr. Mark Lake oétMainstreet program to present
the draft of the Mainstreet grant agreement. Mikd.reported that this version of the
agreement contains many changes from the firstorerdvir. Lake noted that none of the
issues were heavily debated. Mr. Lake has beekimgpwith Rich Williams and was
happy to report that his work with him has promptedny of the changes that were
sought. Mr. Lake said that Megan Behr assurestihéithe Sands Dorsey project will be
removed from the plan.

Ms. Rose stated that the grant is a reimbursalaletgwhich means the City will have to
pay upfront and wait for reimbursement for expemn@is associated with this grant.

Commissioner Sandoval asked if the grant agreemehtded completing the rail depot
building. Mr. Lake stated that the depot will l&t completely finished with these funds.
Mr. Lake said that the Mainstreet program wantsftimgling to be spent on the depot
park. Mr. Lake reported that $250,000 from thengi@an be spent on doors, windows
and infrastructure to get water to the building.r. Make also explained that there is
$308,725.48 earmarked for streets, sidewalks, ¢carx$ gutters. Additionally, Mr. Lake

stated that there is $180,652.00 for soft surfacekiding landscaping, irrigation and

lighting; and $140,184.26 for planning and desigklr. Lake stated that the in-kind

match could be met with the federal grant.

Commissioner Lafferty asked if there is enough fngdn the federal grant for both sides
of funding. Mr. Lake responded in the positive.

Commissioner Lafferty inquired who would be respblesfor paying the gross receipts
tax. Mr. Lake stated that the City will be obligdtto pay the gross receipts tax.
However, Mr. Lake stated that there is $400,000 caserve in the EDC tax that can be
used for this purpose.

Mr. Pat Vanderpool suggested that the tax couldriagle the responsibility of the

contractors. Mr. Vanderpool suggested that dupingse two, bonds could be sold. Mr.
Vanderpool also suggested that the depot couldob®pleted with the remaining funds

that were not used for construction of a rail spMit. Vanderpool stated that he felt this
could be a very good project.



Commissioner Sandoval asked if local contractoraldvbe used. Mr. Vanderpool stated
that the project would have to be put out to bid.

Commissioner Lafferty asked Mr. Vanderpool if heswaomfortable moving forward
with this project and if he was comfortable witheti$400,000 cash reserve being
allocated to this project. Mr. Vanderpool statkdtthe is comfortable but would prefer
to use the cash reserve elsewhere if possible.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked if the windows wereerdly replaced. Mr. Lake
responded that only the glass was replaced. Cosioney Lumpkin suggested that
energy efficiency grants could be sought to reptaeewvindows. Mr. Vanderpool agreed
that seeking energy efficiency grant funding wobkda good idea.

Mr. Lake stated that the plan is to get the progatted and then seek other funding
sources as needed.

Commissioner Lafferty commended Mr. Vanderpool, Make and Ms. Rose for their
work on this project as considerable progress le@s lmade since the first draft of the
grant was received. Commissioner Lumpkin and Md@ar Tem Witcher echoed Mr.
Lafferty’'s comments.

Commissioner Lumpkin asked if Ms. Rose recommenrajgatoval of this project. Ms.
Rose stated that the budget needs to be approvéldasdir. Lake can submit it and
pointed out that 10% of the funding must be spgnDbcember so the project needs to
begin quickly.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve thanktreet Grant Agreement
Budget. Commissioner Lafferty seconded the moti@nll Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes

Ms. Rose then presented the contract with CDM Egwging for Ute Water Planning.
Ms. Rose stated that this contract places a loeghonsibility on the City. Ms. Rose
explained that she sent this contract to the CitorAey for his review. Ms. Rose
expressed concern that the limit of liability iS0gB00. Ms. Rose would like the authority
to approve the sub-contractors that will be usedhis project. Ms. Rose was also
concerned that the contract stated that CDM wildirethe plans upon completion of the
project. Ms. Rose feels that the City is payingtfee project and should own the plans
after completion.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to proceed wa#ks one and two of the CDM
Engineering Agreement for Ute Water Planning witty @ttorney approval and with the
conditions outlined by Ms. Rose. Commissioner édff seconded the motion. Roll
Call:

Lumpkin Witcher Sandoval Lafferty
Yes Yes Yes Yes

New Business



Mayor Pro Tem Witcher called upon Mr. Pat Vandeiptm present the Economic
Development Corporations request for Economic Dmweent Tax funds for
infrastructure assistance. Mr. Vanderpool explitieat Pat and Dana Benavidez are
seeking to open a child care business in TucunwaiRoute 66. The Benavidez's are
requesting $10,000 to improve the building to maksmpliant for day care standards.
Mr. Vanderpool noted that the Benavidez's are itiigs$12,000 and that the EDC
Board had approved the request.

Commissioner Lumpkin asked if the building is owrigd the City. Mr. Vanderpool
responded in the negative and added that the fgndih be used for bathrooms and
fencing around the play area.

Commissioner Lumpkin asked Ms. Rose what her thtsuglere on the request. Ms.
Rose stated that she has concerns that the Cityinvdst $10,000 if this request is
approved and the owners have no obligation anda@dk away from the project in six
months.

Mr. Vanderpool explained that this is an econongeaedopment project that will increase
jobs in the City by seven and improve a buildingRwoute 66. Mr. Vanderpool stated
that he sees no drawbacks to the request and atidedt is a small project. Mr.
Vanderpool also explained that as a service busirtes request qualifies under State
and City Ordinances.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher commented that a day cargigeo is a much needed service in
the area. Mr. Vanderpool agreed that the businesdd meet a community need. Mr.
Vanderpool added that the Benavidez’'s have beeratipg a similar business for three
years in Portales.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that he has conceegarding this request’s compliance
with the City Ordinance. Mr. Lafferty explainedathsection 8 B of the Ordinance
requires a cost/benefit analysis and asked if alysis had been put together. Mr.
Vanderpool responded that a complete cost/bengfityais had not been completed.
Commissioner Lafferty asked if a payroll analysedhbeen done. Mr. Vanderpool
responded in the negative.

Commissioner Lafferty further explained that thedi@ance requires a ten year
agreement and a 10% guarantee. Mr. Lafferty asloed the City gets past this if we
ignore those rules now and then try to enforce tiheier. Mr. Vanderpool stated that
there is a section of the Ordinance that allowsafshorter project term. Mr. Vanderpool
stated that each project has to be evaluated owitsmerits.

Commissioner Lafferty asked how the request watsngepast the security requirements.
Mr. Vanderpool replied that the project would bendigial in the long term.
Commissioner Lafferty stated that the next timeQlity asks for security or pay back, he
does not want this decision to bite the City.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked Ms. Rose if she reconted this request be granted.
Ms. Rose stated that she did not feel comfortald&ing a recommendation as she has



not had time to read it in its entirety and stuldg applicable ordinance. However, Ms.
Rose felt that if Mr. Vanderpool recommended thquest, it should be granted.
Commissioner Lumpkin asked Mr. Vanderpool if heoramended the request be
granted. Mr. Vanderpool responded in the positive.

Commissioner Lumpkin made a motion to approve thenBmic Development
Corporation’s request for Economic Development ftaeds for Infrastructure assistance.
Commissioner Sandoval seconded the motion. Rdli Ca

Witcher Sandoval Lafferty Lumpkin
Yes Yes No Yes

Items From Commissioners

Commissioner Lumpkin thanked all those who werattendance for coming to the

meeting. He also thanked the Convention Centertlieir report. Commissioner

Lumpkin also thanked Pat Vanderpool and Mark Laketlieir work on the Mainstreet

project. Mr. Lumpkin told Mr. Powers that it wak® to see him back at the meetings.
Commissioner Lumpkin also thanked Mr. Aragon fa inivocation.

Commissioner Sandoval had no comments.

Commissioner Lafferty stated that his vote of natwa EDC request should not be taken
as a vote of non-support for the EDC. Commissidwdferty stated that the City has to

abide by the Ordinance regarding EDC Tax requebts. Lafferty stated that he is not

against Mr. Vanderpool or the EDC.

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher thanked those in attendancedming.

Adjournment

Mayor Pro Tem Witcher asked for a motion to adjdilmemeeting. Commissioner
Lumpkin made a motion to adjourn and Commissioradfdrty seconded the motion.
Roll Call:

Sandoval Lafferty Lumpkin Witcher
Yes Yes Yes Yes

The meeting was adjourned at 6:47 p.m.

James L. Witcher, Sr., Mayor Pro Tem

ATTEST:

Christine Dougherty, City Clerk



